
04-02832-0 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

In Re: Case No. 04-33853
Tamara J Worden, Chapter 13 Case

Debtor,

OBJECTION BY FORD MOTOR CREDIT COMPANY  
TO CONFIRMATION OF CHAPTER 13 PLAN WITH MEMORANDUM

AND REQUEST FOR DISMISSAL

TO:  Debtor(s) and other entities specified in Local Rule 9013-3. 

1. Ford Motor Credit Company, (the "Respondent") is the holder of a claim in the above case, and,

by its undersigned attorney, objects to confirmation of the proposed Chapter 13 Plan.

2. The petition commencing this Chapter 13 case was filed on June 30, 2004.  The Debtor(s) have

filed a Chapter 13 Plan scheduled for confirmation hearing on August 12, 2004 at 10:30 AM.

3. This objection arises under 11 U.S.C. §1324 and Fed. R. Bankr. P. 3015, and is filed under Fed.

R. Bankr. P. 9014 and Local Rules 3015-3, 9013-2, 9013-3.  Respondent objects to confirmation

of the proposed Plan and requests an order denying confirmation of the proposed Plan.

4. Respondent is the holder of a claim, and is thus a party in interest.     

5. The balance outstanding on the debt owed to Respondent by Debtor(s) is $12,722.26.

6. Respondent holds a perfected security interest in a 2002 FORD MUSTANG V6 (the collateral). 

Copies of the Lien Card or the UCC-1 Financing Statement and of Respondent's Contract

evidencing the underlying transaction are attached as Exhibits "A" and "B" respectively.  The

Debtor has informed Respondent she sold the collateral to a 3rd party without Respondent’s

knowledge or consent.  The present market value of the collateral on or about June 30, 2004 was

$11,450.00.  Debtor’s plan has no provision for treatment of Respondent’s secured claim.  



7. The Plan proposes that Debtor(s): (1) pay the Chapter 13 Trustee $ 150 per month and  (2)

appears to include Respondent’s secured claim  in the general unsecured nonpriority claims

which the Plan presently estimates will be paid about 3 cents on the dollar.

8. The Plan is objected to on the following grounds

a. Good Faith.  That the Plan has not been proposed in good faith in violation of
§1325(a)(3).

Under §1325(a)(3), the court cannot confirm a Chapter 13 plan that is not filed in good faith.  In

the 8th Circuit, good faith is determined by considering the totality of circumstances.  In re LeMaire, 898

F.2d 1346 (8th Cir.1990).  See also, In re Estus, 695 F.2d 311 (8th Cir.1982) and Education Assistance

Corp. v. Zellner, 827 F.2d 1222 (8th Cir.1987).  

Three factors are considered in determining whether a plan was proposed in good faith: (1)

whether the Debtor accurately stated his expenses and debts; (2) whether the Debtor made a fraudulent

misrepresentation to the Bankruptcy Court; and (3) whether the Debtor unfairly manipulated the

Bankruptcy Code.  Bayer v. Hill, 210 B.R. 794, 796 (8th Cir. BAP August 12, 1997).  Other factors may

also be considered, such as:  the nature of the debts sought to be discharged, including their

dischargeability under Chapter 7,  and the debtor's reasons for seeking Chapter 13 relief.  See In re

Reynold and Patricia Mattson, 241 B.R. 629 (Bkrtcy. Minn. 1999) (No. 99-42865, Nov. 30, 1999).  "The

bottom line for most courts, even those outside of this circuit, is whether the debtor is attempting to

thwart his creditors or is making an honest attempt to repay them."  Mattson, supra, page 637.

Debtor sold Respondent’s collateral to a 3rd party without paying the debt secured by the

collateral.  Debtor now attempts to effectively strip Respondent of its lien rights through this plan by

paying only pennies on the dollar.  Debtor did not apply any sales proceeds to the debt.

Debtor(s)' Schedules I and J show the following unnecessary expenses and/or luxury

goods/services being retained: 

$80.00 for telephone (amount too high for reasonable telephone costs - standard phone costs are
about $30.00 per month)
$50.00 for cable and internet



$130.00 for medical expenses although schedules do not indicate the Debtor or her daughter has
any medical treatment or condition justifying that amount per month
$78.00 for Recreation, clubs, etc.
Debtor maintains a boat, motor and trailer listed in her Schedule B although such maintenance
costs appear to be “buried” in the “Other” or “Transportation” expense categories.

A Debtor(s)' proposal to retain luxury goods while proposing to pay unsecured creditors only a

percentage of their claims is indicative of a lack of good faith.  In re Nkanang, 44 B.R. 955, 956

(Bkrtcy.N.D.Ga. 1984), In re Porter, 102 B.R. 773 (9th Cir. B.A.P. 1989).  

Allocating plan payments and disposable income toward loans and maintenance costs of non-

essential assets while also proposing to defer, reduce, or even deny a return to other creditors, raises

serious good faith questions.  "In such a case, the Debtor proposes to build up equity in assets which the

legislature has not found essential to a fresh start; more crucially, the Debtor proposes to correspondingly

defer, reduce, or even deny a return to other creditors on their prior claims, by diverting estate resources

to nonessential purposes... Such a plan grants a windfall to the Debtor, enriching him at creditors' expense

to the extent of the equity accumulated post-petition."  In re Cordes, 147 B.R. 498, 505 (Bkrtcy.D.Minn.

1992).

A Debtor(s)' proposal to maintain a high standard of living while proposing to pay unsecured

creditors only a percentage of their claims is further indicative of a lack of good faith and "while the

Court readily concedes that the function of the provisions under Chapter 13 of the act is not designed to

condemn a Debtor(s) to a state of poverty, the Court also recognizes that the act was not designed to

thrust a Debtor into a state of luxury to the detriment of his creditors."  In re Jenkins, 20 B.R. 642, 643

(Ark. 1982).  The burden is on the Chapter 13 Debtor(s) to establish good faith in the filing of a debt

adjustment plan once that good faith is questioned.  In re Belt, 106 B.R. 553 (Bkrtcy.N.D.Ind. 1989),

§1325(a)(3).

b. Disposable Income.  That the Plan does not provide that all of the Debtor(s)' projected
disposable income to be received in the first 36 months of the Plan will be applied to
make Plan payments as required under §1325(b)(1)(B).

Debtor(s) in Chapter 13 Bankruptcy must include all "disposable income" in their payments to the

Chapter 13 Trustee.  In re McDaniel, 126 B.R. 782, 784 (Bkrtcy.D.Minn. 1991), §1325(b)(1)(B). 



"Disposable income" is defined as that which is not "reasonably necessary" to be expended by the

Debtor(s).  The court must balance the interests of creditors against the interests of the Debtor(s) to

determine the manner in which they should maintain and support themselves.  Id. at 784.  "But Debtors in

Chapter 13 cases are not entitled to maintain their former lifestyles and statuses in society at the expense

of their creditors."  Id. at 784.  The Schedules indicate additional disposable income of about $278 per

month  is available for Plan use.

In considering whether all of Debtor(s)' disposable income is going into the plan, the Court

applies a "best efforts" test.  In re Sitarz,150 B.R. 710 (Bkrtcy.D.Minn.1993).  Failure of the Debtor(s) to

pass the "best efforts" test and to submit all disposable income during the first 36 months also constitutes

a lack of good faith under §1325(a)(3).  In re Cordes, 147 B.R. 498 (Bkrtcy.D.Minn.1992).

c. Dismissal of Case.  On request of a party in interest, the court may dismiss a case for
cause, under Chapter 13.  11 U.S.C. §1307(c).

The Debtor has failed to propose a confirmable plan.  Such failure causes unreasonable delay

prejudicial to all creditors.  Debtor has the exclusive right and obligation to propose a Chapter 13 plan. 

11 U.S.C. §1321.  The Debtor thus has the burden of proposing a plan that is fair and that complies with

the requirements of the Bankruptcy Code.  Debtor has failed to timely file a plan that meets those

standards.  Such constitutes cause as set out in §1307 (c) (1) and (3).

This objection provides the Debtor with the necessary information as to what modifications must

be made to the proposed plan to obtain confirmation. 

WHEREFORE, Ford Motor Credit Company  requests the court deny confirmation of the 



proposed plan, and grant dismissal of the case, and such other relief as may be just and equitable.

Dated:  August 2, 2004 STEWART, ZLIMEN & JUNGERS, LTD.
/e/ Linda Jeanne Jungers
Linda Jeanne Jungers, Atty ID #5303X
Attorneys for Movant
430 Oak Grove Street #200
Minneapolis, MN  55403
612-870-4100

This is a communication from a debt collector attempting to collect a debt.  Any information obtained will
be used for that purpose.
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04-02832-0 UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT
DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

In Re: Case No. 04-33853

Tamara J Worden, Chapter 13 Case
Debtor,

UNSWORN DECLARATION OF PROOF OF SERVICE

I,Linda Jeanne Jungers, declare under penalty of perjury that on August 2, 2004, I mailed copies

of the foregoing  Objection to Confirmation of Plan with Memorandum, Verification, proposed Order,

and Unsworn Declaration of Proof of Service, by first class mail, postage prepaid, to each entity named

below at the address stated below for each entity.

Tamara J Worden
8 Lee Street
Forest Lake, MN  55025

Gregory J Wald
Attorney at Law
3601 Minnesota Dr, Suite 800
Edina, MN  55435

Jasmine Z. Keller
Chapter 13 Trustee
12 S. 6th St #310
Minneapolis,  MN  55402

U.S. Trustee
1015 U.S. Courthouse
300 South 4th Street
Minneapolis, MN  55415

Executed on:  August 2, 2004 
Signed:   /e/Linda Jeanne Jungers            
Linda Jeanne Jungers
STEWART, ZLIMEN & JUNGERS
430 Oak Grove Street, #200
Minneapolis, MN  55403



04-02832-0
UNITED STATES BANKRUPTCY COURT

DISTRICT OF MINNESOTA

In Re: Case No. 04-33853

Tamara J Worden, Chapter 13 Case

Debtor,

ORDER DENYING CONFIRMATION OF CHAPTER 13 PLAN
AND DISMISSING CASE FOR CAUSE

This Chapter 13 case came on before the Court on August 12, 2004 at 10:30 AM, for hearing on
confirmation of a proposed Plan of individual debt adjustment.  Linda Jeanne Jungers appeared on behalf
of Ford Motor Credit Company.  Other appearances were as noted in the record.  Upon the record made at
the hearing, and the other files, records, and proceedings in this case,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED:

1. That confirmation of Debtor's Plan of debt adjustment is denied.  

2. That the case is dismissed, for cause.

Dated: BY THE COURT:

______________________________
United States Bankruptcy Judge




